
       
       

 
CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING PACKET 
April 1, 2024 @ 6:00pm Smith Park Shelter House 

 
1.  Call to Order: Mayor Bill Cook
2.  Roll Call: Clerk of Council 
3.  Invocation: Pledge of Allegiance: 
5.  Action on Minutes: 03/18/24 Regular Meeting 
6.  Communications: Key to the City Presentation to Mike Lowrey and Public Hearing for  

                   Ordinance 2024-15 
7.  City Manager’s Report: Attached 
8.     Committee Reports: 
9.  Comments from Members of the Public: *Comments limited to 5 minutes or less

10. RESOLUTIONS: (1 - Intro; 1 - Action)  
*A. Resolution 2024-05R (Introduction, Public Hearing and Action Tonight) 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINAL PLAN FOR THE CLARK COUNTYWIDE 9-1-1 SYSTEM 
 
11. ORDINANCES: (2 - Intro; 2 - Action*) 
*A. Ordinance 2024-13 (Introduced on 3/18/24. Public Hearing and Action Tonight) 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SALE, BY INTERNET AUCTION, OF CITY OWNED 
PERSONAL PROPERTY WHICH IS NOT NEEDED FOR PUBLIC USE, OR IS OBSOLETE OR UNFIT 
FOR THE USE FOR WHICH IT WAS ACQUIRED 
*B. Ordinance 2024-14 (Introduced on 3/18/24. Public Hearing and Action Tonight) 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS IN EXCESS OF THIRTY-FIVE 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($35,000) FOR THE PAVING AND STRIPING OF THE HERITAGE HALL 
AND HENSLEY PARK PARKING AREAS 
C. Ordinance 2024-15 (Introduced on 03/18/24. Public Hearing on 04/01/24.  Action on 04/15/24) 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1244 OF THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE’S PLANNING 
AND ZONING CODE 
D. Ordinance 2024-16 (Introduction Tonight. Public Hearing and Action on 04/15/24) 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE INCOME TAX RULES AND 
REGULATIONS REGARDING THE LOCAL BOARD OF TAX REVIEW 
E. Ordinance 2024-17 (Introduction Tonight. Public Hearing and Action on 04/15/24) 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 2014-04 FOR THE PURPOSE OF CORRECTING A 
SCRIVENER'S ERROR REGARDING THE PERMIT FEE FOR FINAL PLAT ESTIMATED 
PROJECT COST 

 
12.  OTHER BUSINESS:  
o Additional City Business:    

▪ Council Coffee and Donuts.  Saturday, April 13th @ Heritage Hall.  10A-12P. 
▪ Open for Discussion on City Related Business 

13. Executive Session:  
14. Return to Regular Session:   
15. Adjournment 

 
 
 
 

Next Regular City Council Meeting is Monday, April 15, 2024 @ Smith Park Shelter House. 6:00PM. 
 



RECORD OF PROCEEDING
MINUTES: CITY OF NEW CARLISLE, OHIO REGULAR SESSION MEETING @ Smith Park Shelter
House held 3/18/24 @ 6:00 pm
1. Call to Order: Mayor Cook calls the meeting to order.
2. Roll Call: Berner calls the roll- Cook, Bahun, Shamy, Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston. Absent: Grimm 6
members present
3. Invocation: Trusty
4. Pledge of Allegiance: All are Welcome to Participate
5. Action on Minutes:
2/20/24 resubmitted 1st Shamy 2nd Eggleston YES: Cook, Bahun, Shamy, Wright, Eggleston Abstain:
Lindsey absent
3/4/24- 1st Eggleston 2nd Shamy YES: Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook, Bahun, Shamy Accepted
Motion by Eggleston 2nd by Shamy to break rules of the Council to add an executive session to discuss
the discipline of a public employee YES: Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook, Bahun, Shamy NAY: 0
Accepted 6-0
Motion to move to executive session to discuss the discipline of a public employee by Eggleston 2nd by
Wright. YES: Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook, Bahun, Shamy, Wright NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0
Motion to return to regular session by Eggleston 2nd by Shamy YES: Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook,
Bahun, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0
6. Communications: none
7. City Manager's Report:
DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS- Given at 2nd meeting of the month.

Service Report:
Kitko gives a brief overview of the items below. Eggleston asks about repaving Orth. Kitko notes it is in
the works but depends on the ADA ramps and how many are needed. Each is $7,000. Wright asks about
the yellow lines and notes many are faded. Kitko notes the ones that are double yellow were listed, and a
new curb painter is coming and will be done. Wright mentioned more advertisement signs on telephone
poles. Kito noted they try to get them down.



Fire/EMS Report:
Trusty gives a summary of the following report.



Planning and Zoning Report:
Bridge gives the summary of the report below.



Police Report:
Deputy Spekman will be leaving, and Bridge introduces Deputy Deringer, who will replace him.





Finance Report:







Wright wanted citizens to be aware of the funds the city donates to.
Motion by Eggleston 2nd by Bahun to accept the Finance Report YES: 6 Shamy, Wright, Eggleston,
Cook, Grimm, Bahun, NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0
Motion by Eggleston 2nd by Shamy to accept the Mayor's court report. YES: Wright, Eggleston, Cook,
Grimm, Bahun, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0
Informational Items from the City Manager:



Bridge notes that the owner of McDonald's is looking to get involved in the community.
Bridge will attend the Evans Land auction to see who the new neighbors of the city will be.
The motion request is to guide Bridge with the proposal from Mr. Bales to assist with consultation for the
Council. Eggleston states, "Do it," and Bahun "thinks it would be beneficial…. Helpful to move in the
direction and unify," Wright agrees, and "low cost considering what we are getting". Lindsey notes, "We
could spend six grand someplace else a lot better; I would be a no-vote." Motion by Wright 2nd by
Eggleston to have the CM enter into an agreement with local government consultants for the council
retreat YES: Cook, Bahun, Shamy, Wright, Eggleston NAY: Lindsey Accepted 5-1
Lindsey notes bigger signs are better. Consider parking a cruiser at Hensley Park. Brief discussions on
slowing traffic down on Main by Council. Kitko notes they will go with signs and paint the white edge
line. Cook asks about the sign at Hensley Park. Bridge said the previous Council chose to do away with it.
The founded in 1810 will be replaced in a new spot.
8. COMMITTEE REPORTS: none
9. COMMENTS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC:
Matt Mills- 285 Zellar Dr- township- here as the appointed CTC board member. He explains the CTC
program and how the eight public schools utilize the school. He describes the building conditions and the
layout of the property in 6-7 different buildings. CTC has the chance to pass the issue and utilize funds
from the state. They have one more opportunity to pass it if it does not pass in March. Seven hundred
eighty-six students applied, but only 500 got in. Mills notes many kids want to go, but the room is not
available. Current acceptance is around ½ of all that apply to each program. He notes that CTC needs
space and new schools. 1.4 mill property tax on 100,000. $49 a year per $100,000 appraised value. This
tax will be countywide. Cook thanks Mills for his input and how he has tried to inform everyone on social
media. Truty adds he hired two kids out of CTC, "were the best two hires I have hired." Bridge adds the
need for individuals in the water and wastewater services. He notes looking at this and the need to add a
program. Bridge also asks about the county line crossovers. Mills explains overlapping city and school
boundaries and how the voting works.



10. RESOLUTIONS:
Resolution 2024-04R A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE OFFICIAL CERTIFICATE OF
ESTIMATED RESOURCES FOR 2024 ALONG WITH THE TAX YEAR 2024 RATES AND
AMOUNTS CERTIFICATION FROM THE CLARK COUNTY BUDGET COMMISSION 1st Lindsey
2nd Shamy ex: yearly housekeeping YES: Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook, Bahun, Shamy NAY: 0
Accepted 6-0
11. ORDINANCES:
Ordinance 2024-07 AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO
AN AGREEMENT FOR IT AND COMPLIANCE SERVICES Eggleston moves to table with 2nd by
Shamy Lindsey would like to amend the ordinance to stay tabled until 2nd Wright YES: Lindsey,
Eggleston, Cook, Bahun, Shamy, Wright NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0 to amend YES: Wright, Lindsey,
Eggleston, Cook, Bahun, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0
Ordinance 2024-11 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 2023-52 FOR THE PURPOSE OF
CORRECTING A SCRIVENER'S ERROR 1st Eggleston 2nd Shamy ex: passed in 2022 1460.43
numbering mistake, reassigning a code number YES: Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook, Bahun, Shamy
NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0
Ordinance 2024-12 AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE THE EDITING AND INCLUSION OF
CERTAIN ORDINANCES AS PARTS OF THE VARIOUS COMPONENT CODES OF THE CODIFIED
ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE FOR THE ADOPTION OF NEW MATTER IN THE UPDATED AND
REVISED CODIFIED ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE FOR THE PUBLICATION OF SUCH NEW
MATTER; AND TO REPEAL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH. 1st Eggleston 2nd Shamy
ex: yearly housekeeping to update codes council has to approve YES: Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook,
Bahun, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0
Ordinance 2024-13 (into tonight, public hearing and action 4/1/24) AN ORDINANCE
AUTHORIZING THE SALE, BY INTERNET AUCTION, OF CITY OWNED PERSONAL
PROPERTY WHICH IS NOT NEEDED FOR PUBLIC USE, OR IS OBSOLETE OR UNFIT FOR THE
USE FOR WHICH IT WAS ACQUIRED 1st
Ordinance 2024-14 (into tonight, public hearing and action 4/1/24) AN ORDINANCE
AUTHORIZING AN EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS IN EXCESS OF THIRTY-FIVE THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($35,000) FOR THE PAVING AND STRIPING OF THE HERITAGE HALL AND
HENSLEY PARK PARKING AREAS
Ordinance 2024-15 (into tonight, public hearing and action 4/1/24) AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
CHAPTER 1244 OF THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE'S PLANNING AND ZONING CODE
12. OTHER BUSINESS:
-Key to the City presentation to former Mayor Mike Lowrey- 4/1/24
Coffee and Donuts 4/13/24 starting at 10:00 am at Heritage Hall.
Motion by Shamy 2nd by Eggleston to excuse Grimm YES: Cook, Bahun, Shamy, Wright, Lindsey,
Eggleston NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0
Wright asks about the plan for Addison Carlisle (the Y intersection) and where the new road connections
will be. Quick council discussions and Bridge notes the plan can be found online.
Lindsey notes a letter that Mr. Grimm had added to the minutes from one he received in February about a
man getting a ticket for parking 2 of his cars close together. Lindsey notes that the Council can eliminate
this part of the ordinance. Bridge notes they can amend the code. Discussions from Bridge and Council
and notes most of the codes are a copy and paste from state code. Lindsey adds that part can be eliminated



if they wish. He adds the deputies have more things to do than measure the width between cars. Cook asks
if the Council wanted to remove that, what would keep the deputy from applying a state code? Bridge
notes it still can be enforced. Wright notes the law utilized on Main is applicable but possibly revise it for
neighborhoods—continued discussions on various scenarios. Lindsey reminds the Council they can
change any legislation. Cook asks how many tickets have been written in regards to this code? Bridge 2-3.
Bridge comments that he can assist in changing this, but why when it is not a problem? Bridge commends
Lindsey for doing this the correct way. Lindsey notes he needs a 2nd, and Bridge notes he does not need
2nd to request draft legislation. Continued discussions and Cook asks for input from Council on this
matter. Shamy notes it is silly, Bahun is okay with changing it, and Wright adds that we have two plats
coming, so we need to change something. Wright seconds Lindsey's motion to "do away with the parking
within 1 ft in front of your own house". Bridge adds new parking tickets will need to be ordered. Bahun
jokingly suggests writing more tickets. The clerk notes that the letter Lindsey referred to at the beginning
of the discussion had nothing to do with the parking tickets; it was about the naming of Heritage Hall.
Vote on Lindsey's motion YES: 4 Lindsey, Bahun, Shamy, Wright NAY: 2 Eggleston, Cook Accepted 4-2
Wright asks about getting the codes, and Lindsey notes they are online.
13. Executive Session: none
14. Adjournment: @ 7:08 pm 1st Eggleston 2nd Shamy @ pm Yes: Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook,
Bahun, Shamy, Accepted 6-0
_________________________________
Mayor Bill Cook
______________________________
Clerk of Council Emily Berner



 
City Manager Report  

April 1, 2024 
 

 
A. DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 

 
• The Following Departmental Reports will be given at the next City Council meeting that 

will be held on Monday, April 15, 2024 
o Finance, Public Service, Fire/EMS, and Police 

• Planning & Zoning, Mayor's Court Report - Attached 
 
 
B. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  
 
• Discussion Topics 

o Ordinance 2024-07 
▪ Tabled until further notice 

o City Council Retreat and Strategy Session Dates- Motion Requested 
o Utility Company Rights - Information at the 04/15/24 Meeting 
o Monroe Meadows (Arbor Homes)  

▪ Final Plans expected in August 
o City Council Dais - Local woodworker 
o Rumpke 

▪ April 8th (Solar Eclipse) Start Time - Discussion 
o Executive Assistant to the City Manager 
o Additional Discussion Topics 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment Summary: 
• Planning & Zoning / Mayor's Court Report 

Motion Summary: 
• City Council Retreat and Strategy Session Dates 
 



Data Summary Mar 16-Mar 29 Mar 16-Mar 29

1280.05 Additional Yard Height Requirements Total Violations 13

1280.03 Private Swimming Pools Total Properties Violated 7

1244.10 Zoning Permit Required Average Violations Per Property 1.8

1290.03 Sign Permit Required Abatement Complete

1290.08 Prohibited Signs 1 Closed Violations

1290.17 Location of Signs 1 Sheriff's Dept.

1290.20 Sign Construction and Maintenance Under Investigation

1290.22 Sign Permit Application Vacant Property Violated

1290.23 Sign Permit Fees Work Order Issued

1460.15 Abatement of Nuisance by the City; Cost Recovery Nuisance Property List

1460.23 Structural Soundness and Maintenance of Dwellings

# of Violations Submitted to 

Mayor's Court

1460.25 Exterior Property and Structure Exteriors; Residential 3 Property Extensions Granted

1460.25 (a) Exterior Space

1460.25 (b) Exterior Maintenance

1460.25 (c) Fences and Walls

1460.25 (d) Yards, Tall Grass & Weeds

1460.25 (e) Hazards

1460.25 (f) Temporary Occupancy

1460.25 (g) Storage 1

1460.25 (h) Drainage

1460.25 (i) Drainage Swales

1460.25 (j) Junk, Inoperable, Unlicensed Vehicle 2

1460.25 (k) Sanitation 1  

1460.25 (l) Swimming Pools

1460.25 (m) Open Fires

1460.26 Vegetation; Residential

1460.28 Accessory Structures

1460.32 -Exterior Property and Structure Exteriors; Commercial

1460.33 Vegetation; Commercial

 1460.45 Donation Bins  

1460.43 (c) On-Street Parking Limitations

Disclaimer
Case Number is a unique identifier assigned to the parcel 
address being violated. 

Main Status determins the activity of the entire case. Main 
Status will show open even if some of the violations have 
been closed (remedied). 

Violation Status means one or more violations assigned to 
the case are either open or closed.

Extensions are provided on a case by case scenario. In most 
cases the the violations are exteme and more time is needed 
to remedy the situations.

Planning Department Report Stats                                   
Date: Date: March 16, 2024-March 29, 2024 



1460.43 (d) Parking on Private Property 3  

1460.44 Accessory Uses; Residential, Commercial, Industrial 1  

Permit Date Permit Type Main Status Parcel Address Total Payments

3/28/2024 Tool Lending Center Approved 307 N HENRY ST 0

3/28/2024 Sidewalk/Curb/Gutter Approved 610 West Madison Street 0

3/28/2024 Sidewalk/Curb/Gutter Approved 608 West Madison Street 0

3/25/2024 Dumpster Approved 1307 EDGEBROOK AVE 0

3/25/2024 Sidewalk/Curb/Gutter Approved 115 VILLA DR 20

3/19/2024 Fence Approved 801 N SCOTT ST 20

3/18/2024 Sidewalk/Curb/Gutter Approved 610 TERRA CT NEW CARLISLE 4534420



Case # Main Status

Violation 

Date

Correction 

Deadline

Extension 

Date Parcel Address Violation Name

Violation 

Status

1702 Open 3/25/2024 4/3/2024 0 419 N MAIN ST 1290.08 Prohibited Signs Open

1702 Open 3/25/2024 4/3/2024 0 419 N MAIN ST 1290.17 Location of Signs Open

1701 Open 3/25/2024 3/31/2024 0 305 PRENTICE DR 1460.25 (g) Storage Open

1698 Open 3/25/2024 4/1/2024 0 107 W WASHINGTON ST 1460.25 (j) Junk, Inoperable, Unlicensed Vehicle Open

1701 Open 3/25/2024 3/31/2024 0 305 PRENTICE DR 1460.25 (j) Junk, Inoperable, Unlicensed Vehicle Open

1699 Open 3/25/2024 4/3/2024 0 415 -421 VILLA DR NEW CARLISLE 45344 1460.25 (k) Sanitation Open

1699 Open 3/25/2024 4/3/2024 0 415 -421 VILLA DR NEW CARLISLE 45344 1460.25 Exterior Property and Structure Exteriors; Residential Open

1700 Open 3/25/2024 3/31/2024 0 205 PRENTICE DR 1460.25 Exterior Property and Structure Exteriors; Residential Open

1701 Open 3/25/2024 3/31/2024 0 305 PRENTICE DR 1460.25 Exterior Property and Structure Exteriors; Residential Open

1699 Open 3/25/2024 4/3/2024 0 415 -421 VILLA DR NEW CARLISLE 45344 1460.26 Vegetation; Residential Open

1701 Open 3/25/2024 3/31/2024 0 305 PRENTICE DR 1460.43 (d) Parking on Private Property Open

1703 Open 3/25/2024 3/31/2024 0 233 DRAKE AVE 1460.43 (d) Parking on Private Property Open

1704 Open 3/25/2024 3/31/2024 0 322 FENWICK DR 1460.43 (d) Parking on Private Property Open

1701 Open 3/25/2024 3/31/2024 0 305 PRENTICE DR 1460.44 Accessory Uses; Residential, Commercial, Industrial Open

Planning Department Report                                      
Date: Date: Date: Date: March 16, 2024-March 29, 2024 



1st

2nd:

Wright Y N
Bahun Y N
Lindsey Y N
Mayor Cook Y N
V. Mayor Eggleston Y N
Shamy Y N
Grimm Y N

Totals:

Pass Fail

RESOLUTION 2024-05R 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINAL PLAN FOR THE CLARK 
COUNTYWIDE 9-1-1 SYSTEM 

 
 WHEREAS, § 128.06(D) of the Ohio Revised Code (“O.R.C.”) requires that each county 9-1-1 
program review committee maintain and amend a final plan for implementing and operating a countywide 
9-1-1 system; and  

 WHEREAS, the Clark County 9-1-1 Program Review Committee (“Committee”) has created the 
final plan pursuant to the requirements of O.R.C. §§ 128.06 and 128.07; and  

 WHEREAS, O.R.C. § 128.07(B)(1)(a) requires that the Committee send a copy of the final plan 
to the legislative authority of each municipal corporation in the county by certified mail, or ordinary mail 
and by internet identifier of record; and  

 WHEREAS, O.R.C. § 128.08(A) requires that the legislative authority of each municipal 
corporation in the county act by resolution to approve or disapprove the plan within sixty days of receipt 
of the final plan; and  

 WHEREAS, upon approving or disapproving the final plan, the City must immediately notify the 
Clark County Board of Commissioners in writing of such approval or disapproval; and  

 WHEREAS, after reviewing the final plan, City Council has determined that it would be in the 
City’s best interest to approve the final plan.   

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY RESOLVES that: 

SECTION 1.   In accordance with O.R.C. §128.08(A), the City approves the final plan, attached as 
 Exhibit A, submitted by the Committee. The Clerk of Council shall immediately notify 
 the Clark County Board of Commissioners in writing of the City’s approval and provide a 
 copy of this resolution as part of that notification.  

 

Passed this ________ day of _____________, 2024. 

        _________________________ 
             Bill Cook, Mayor 
 

        ____________________________ 
                 Emily Berner, Clerk of Council 
      APPROVED AS TO FORM:    

_______________________________    
  Jake Jeffries, DIRECTOR OF LAW 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
Intro: 04/01/2024 
     Action: 04/01/2024 
          Effective: 04/16/2024 
 



Exhibit A
Resolution 2024-05

randybridge
Highlight

























ORDINANCE 2024-13 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SALE, BY INTERNET AUCTION, OF CITY 
OWNED PERSONAL PROPERTY WHICH IS NOT NEEDED FOR PUBLIC USE, OR 

IS OBSOLETE OR UNFIT FOR THE USE FOR WHICH IT WAS ACQUIRED 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the City’s equipment listed on the attached Exhibit A is no longer needed, 
is past its useful life and may have already been replaced; and  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to RC § 721.15(D), the City is authorized to sell unneeded, 

obsolete or unfit property through internet auction; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to utilize the services of GovDeals, Inc. ("GovDeals") as 

the City’s contracted representative to conduct auctions of the listed property on the City’s behalf; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, GovDeals is located at 100 Capital Commerce Boulevard, Suite 110, 

Montgomery, Alabama 36117, its website address is govdeals.com and its telephone number is 
(800) 613-0156; and 

 
WHEREAS, Council has determined that the most cost-effective and efficient way to 

sell the listed property would be through the internet auction process. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY ORDAINS that: 
 
SECTION 1. The personal property listed on the attached Exhibit A is not needed for public 
use, or is obsolete or unfit for the use for which it was acquired. 
 
SECTION 2. The City Manager, or the Director of Public Service/Assistant City Manager as 
the City Manager’s designee, be and he hereby is, authorized and empowered to retain the 
services of GovDeals to effectuate the sale of the property listed on Exhibit A by internet auction, 
to enter into an appropriate user agreement between the City and GovDeals in a form approved by 
the Law Director, and to execute all documents and perform all acts required to complete the sale 
of the property listed on Exhibit A.  
 
SECTION 3. The internet auction will be conducted by GovDeals in accordance with its rules, 
regulations and procedures.  As required by law, the property will be listed for a minimum of ten 
(10) days, including Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays. 
 
SECTION 4. The Clerk of Council shall publish, in a newspaper of general circulation within 
the City or as provided in RC § 7.16, notice of the City’s intent to sell the unneeded, obsolete or 
unfit municipal personal property listed on the attached Exhibit A by internet auction.  The notice 
shall include a summary of the information provided herein and shall be published twice.  The 
second notice shall be published not less than ten (10) nor more than twenty (20) days after the 
previous notice.  A similar notice also shall be posted in a conspicuous place in the office of the 
Clerk of Council and posted on the City’s website.   
 
 
 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW   



1st

2nd:

Wright Y N
Bahun Y N
Lindsey Y N
Mayor Cook Y N
V. Mayor Eggleston Y N
Shamy Y N
Grimm Y N

Totals:

Pass Fail

 
 Passed this __________day of _____________, 2024. 
 
       
 
      ______________________________ 
                    Bill Cook, MAYOR 
 
 
                                                                              ______________________________ 
      Emily Berner, CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________________ 
Jacob M. Jeffries, DIRECTOR OF LAW  

 
 

       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Intro: 03/18/2024 
  Action: 04/1/2024 
    Effective: 04/16/2024 
  
  
      



  
EXHIBIT A 

 
Equipment for Sale 

 
 
*Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) Air Compressor with Cascade System (Fire 
Department) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1st

2nd:

Wright Y N
Bahun Y N
Lindsey Y N
Mayor Cook Y N
V. Mayor Eggleston Y N
Shamy Y N
Grimm Y N

Totals:

Pass Fail

 
 

ORDINANCE 2024-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS IN EXCESS OF 
THIRTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($35,000) FOR THE PAVING AND 

STRIPING OF THE HERITAGE HALL AND HENSLEY PARK PARKING AREAS 
 

WHEREAS, the City was the recipient of a federal grant through Clark County that was used to 
build Heritage Hall, which was completed during November of 2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, the grant funds covered all building costs of Heritage Hall except for the parking 

area; and  
 
WHEREAS, the paving could not be completed during November of 2023 because the asphalt 

plants were shut down for the season; and 
 

WHEREAS, it would be in the City’s best interest to pave the parking areas at Heritage Hall and 
Hensley Park at the same time to save on mobilization costs; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City received the attached proposals from Wagner Paving Inc. for the paving of 
both parking areas in the amount of Forty-Nine Thousand Three Hundred Twenty-Two Dollars ($49,322), 
and the total price of the paving will not exceed Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000); and 
 

WHEREAS, this matter is before City Council due to the cost exceeding the City Manager’s 
monetary threshold.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY ORDAINS that: 
 
Section 1.   The City Manager, or the Director of Public Service/Assistant City Manager as the City 

Manager’s designee, be, and he hereby is, authorized and directed to enter into the attached 
agreements with Wagner Paving Inc. and to execute all other documents as may be necessary 
for the City to complete the Heritage Hall and Hensley Park paving projects.    

 
Section 2.    The dollar amount for said projects shall not exceed Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000). 
 
 

Passed this ________ day of _____________, 2024. 
 

 
     ___________________________ 
                Bill Cook, MAYOR 

 
     ___________________________ 
              Emily Berner, CLERK 

 
         APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

 
___________________________________                    
  Jacob M. Jeffries, DIRECTOR OF LAW 
 
 
 
 
 
Intro: 03/18/2023 
     Action: 04/01/2023 
         Effective: 04/16/2023 
 
 
 



Proposal 

 
COMPANY: City of New Carlisle    PHONE: 937-926-3973    DATE: 2/28/24   
  
EMAIL: HKITKO@NEWCARLISLEOHIO.GOV  SUBJECT: Smith Park - Revised 
  
TO: Howard Kitko     TOTAL PAGES:  1 of 3   JOB NUMBER: 23-0922   
  
We hereby submit specifications and estimates for: 
 
 SCOPE OF WORK SEE PLAN FOR DETAIL: 
  

1. Place, grade, and compact 3” of #304 stone. 
 2. Place 1.5” of compacted type 2 base asphalt. 
 3. Place 1.5” of compacted type 1 surface asphalt.  
 4. Place approximately (9) -  6” bollards. 
 5. Layout and Stripe 
 
  
 NOTES: Any stone not used will be credited back. If stone goes over 215 tons,  
                           there will be an additional charge. 
                         PRICE: $41,958.00                                                                                          
 
 
 
                   PREVAILING WAGE RATES  TAX EXEMPT  1 MOB IN 2024 ONLY 

NO permits, testing, #408 prime, #407 tack, traffic control, signs, or bumper blocks included IF required. 
*CONFIRMATION NEEDED WITHIN 14 DAYS TO LOCK IN PRICES. Proposal is only valid for 14 days.  
 
*DUE TO CURRENT WORK ALREADY UNDER CONTRACT, SUPPLY CHAIN CONSTRAINTS AND UNKNOWN FUTURE WEATHER CONDITIONS, WE 
CANNOT GUARANTEE THIS WORK WILL BE DONE IN 2023 AND WILL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PENALTIES FOR 2023 COMPLETION DATES. 
 
*If any of the above work requires the use of specific compliance websites and/or background checks Wagner Paving must be not ified before the 
acceptance of the job or additional fees will apply 
  
*With the ongoing volatility in the economy, prices and supply shortages, Wagner Paving reserves the right to increase prices relating to materials, 
fuel, transportation, etc.  While Wagner Paving makes every effort to lock in material prices from suppliers, due to the current economic status, we 
cannot guarantee those prices will be honored. 
 
*Any reduction in units, quantities, or increases in mobilizations may result in an increase in cost. 

*This proposal is contingent upon buyer’s acceptance of terms stated herein and to be made a part of any contract or purchase order. 
All grade to be sound and within tolerance + 1” of final grade.  1 move in, all others $1,000.00 each.  All traffic control by others.  Any overage due to poor grade 
done by others will be paid for by owner. 
IF THIS IS ACCEPTED AS A CONTRACT, PLEASE SIGN AND RETURN.  Project will not be started until a signed contract is received by 
Wagner Paving, Inc.  Upon acceptance, please also forward a Notice of Commencement and any applicable tax exempt forms.  Net due 30 
days from date of invoice.  There will be a 1 1/2% (18% apr) service charge applied to all past due accounts. 
 
All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  All work to be completed 
in a workmanlike manner according to standard practices.  Any 
alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs 
will be executed only upon written orders, and will become an extra 
charge over and above the estimate.  All agreements contingent upon 
strikes, accidents or delays beyond our control.  Owner to carry fire, 
tornado and other necessary insurance.  Our workers are fully covered 
by Worker’s Compensation Insurance.  We are an EEO employer. 
Acceptance of Proposal -- The above prices, specifications and 
conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted.  You are 
authorized to do the work as specified.  Payment will be made as 
outlined above.  
DB 
Date of Acceptance: ______________________________________ 

 
 
 
Authorized 
Signature _______________________________________________ 
             TRAVIS HUFFORD 
 
 Note:  This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted 
 within 15 days. 
 
 
Signature _______________________________________________ 
 
 
Signature _______________________________________________ 

 
  



Proposal 

 
COMPANY: City of New Carlisle    PHONE: 937-926-3973    DATE: 2/28/24   
  
EMAIL: HKITKO@NEWCARLISLEOHIO.GOV  SUBJECT: Widening 
  
TO: Howard Kitko     TOTAL PAGES:  2 of 3   JOB NUMBER: 23-0922   
  
We hereby submit specifications and estimates for: 
 
 SCOPE OF WORK - WIDENING: 
  

1. Excavate 8” of topsoil. Haul spoils offsite. 
 2. Place, grade and compact 8” of #304 stone. 
 3. Place 1.5” of compacted type 2 base asphalt.  
 4. Place 1.5” of compacted type 1 surface asphalt. 
 5. Layout and Stripe 
 
  
 NOTES: Must do shelter house to get this price.  
             
                         PRICE: $9,752.00                                                                                          
 
 
 
                   PREVAILING WAGE RATES  TAX EXEMPT  1 MOB IN 2024 ONLY 

NO permits, testing, #408 prime, #407 tack, traffic control, signs, or bumper blocks included IF required. 
*CONFIRMATION NEEDED WITHIN 14 DAYS TO LOCK IN PRICES. Proposal is only valid for 14 days.  
 
*DUE TO CURRENT WORK ALREADY UNDER CONTRACT, SUPPLY CHAIN CONSTRAINTS AND UNKNOWN FUTURE WEATHER CONDITIONS, WE 
CANNOT GUARANTEE THIS WORK WILL BE DONE IN 2023 AND WILL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PENALTIES FOR 2023 COMPLETION DATES. 
 
*If any of the above work requires the use of specific compliance websites and/or background checks Wagner Paving must be not ified before the 
acceptance of the job or additional fees will apply 
  
*With the ongoing volatility in the economy, prices and supply shortages, Wagner Paving reserves the right to increase prices relating to materials, 
fuel, transportation, etc.  While Wagner Paving makes every effort to lock in material prices from suppliers, due to the current economic status, we 
cannot guarantee those prices will be honored. 
 
*Any reduction in units, quantities, or increases in mobilizations may result in an increase in cost. 

*This proposal is contingent upon buyer’s acceptance of terms stated herein and to be made a part of any contract or purchase order. 
All grade to be sound and within tolerance + 1” of final grade.  1 move in, all others $1,000.00 each.  All traffic control by others.  Any overage due to poor grade 
done by others will be paid for by owner. 
IF THIS IS ACCEPTED AS A CONTRACT, PLEASE SIGN AND RETURN.  Project will not be started until a signed contract is received by 
Wagner Paving, Inc.  Upon acceptance, please also forward a Notice of Commencement and any applicable tax exempt forms.  Net due 30 
days from date of invoice.  There will be a 1 1/2% (18% apr) service charge applied to all past due accounts. 
 
All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  All work to be completed 
in a workmanlike manner according to standard practices.  Any 
alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs 
will be executed only upon written orders, and will become an extra 
charge over and above the estimate.  All agreements contingent upon 
strikes, accidents or delays beyond our control.  Owner to carry fire, 
tornado and other necessary insurance.  Our workers are fully covered 
by Worker’s Compensation Insurance.  We are an EEO employer. 
Acceptance of Proposal -- The above prices, specifications and 
conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted.  You are 
authorized to do the work as specified.  Payment will be made as 
outlined above.  
DB 
Date of Acceptance: ______________________________________ 

 
 
 
Authorized 
Signature _______________________________________________ 
             TRAVIS HUFFORD 
 
 Note:  This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted 
 within 15 days. 
 
 
Signature _______________________________________________ 
 
 
Signature _______________________________________________ 

 
         
  



Proposal 

 
COMPANY: City of New Carlisle    PHONE: 937-926-3973    DATE: 2/28/24   
  
EMAIL: HKITKO@NEWCARLISLEOHIO.GOV  SUBJECT: Small Lot 
  
TO: Howard Kitko     TOTAL PAGES:  3 of 3   JOB NUMBER: 23-0922   
  
We hereby submit specifications and estimates for: 
 
 SCOPE OF WORK – SMALL LOT: 
  

1. Fine grade existing stone. 
 2. Place 1.5” of compacted type 2 base asphalt. 
 3. Place 1.5” of compacted type 1 surface asphalt.  
 4. Layout and Stripe. 
 5. Repair parking blocks. 
 
  
 NOTES: Must do shelter house to get this price.  
             
                         PRICE: $7,364.00                                                                                         
 
 
 
                   PREVAILING WAGE RATES  TAX EXEMPT  1 MOB IN 2024 ONLY 

NO permits, testing, #408 prime, #407 tack, traffic control, signs, or bumper blocks included IF required. 
*CONFIRMATION NEEDED WITHIN 14 DAYS TO LOCK IN PRICES. Proposal is only valid for 14 days.  
 
*DUE TO CURRENT WORK ALREADY UNDER CONTRACT, SUPPLY CHAIN CONSTRAINTS AND UNKNOWN FUTURE WEATHER CONDITIONS, WE 
CANNOT GUARANTEE THIS WORK WILL BE DONE IN 2023 AND WILL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PENALTIES FOR 2023 COMPLETION DATES. 
 
*If any of the above work requires the use of specific compliance websites and/or background checks Wagner Paving must be not ified before the 
acceptance of the job or additional fees will apply 
  
*With the ongoing volatility in the economy, prices and supply shortages, Wagner Paving reserves the right to increase prices relating to materials, 
fuel, transportation, etc.  While Wagner Paving makes every effort to lock in material prices from suppliers, due to the current economic status, we 
cannot guarantee those prices will be honored. 
 
*Any reduction in units, quantities, or increases in mobilizations may result in an increase in cost. 

*This proposal is contingent upon buyer’s acceptance of terms stated herein and to be made a part of any contract or purchase order. 
All grade to be sound and within tolerance + 1” of final grade.  1 move in, all others $1,000.00 each.  All traffic control by others.  Any overage due to poor grade 
done by others will be paid for by owner. 
IF THIS IS ACCEPTED AS A CONTRACT, PLEASE SIGN AND RETURN.  Project will not be started until a signed contract is received by 
Wagner Paving, Inc.  Upon acceptance, please also forward a Notice of Commencement and any applicable tax exempt forms.  Net due 30 
days from date of invoice.  There will be a 1 1/2% (18% apr) service charge applied to all past due accounts. 
 
All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  All work to be completed 
in a workmanlike manner according to standard practices.  Any 
alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs 
will be executed only upon written orders, and will become an extra 
charge over and above the estimate.  All agreements contingent upon 
strikes, accidents or delays beyond our control.  Owner to carry fire, 
tornado and other necessary insurance.  Our workers are fully covered 
by Worker’s Compensation Insurance.  We are an EEO employer. 
Acceptance of Proposal -- The above prices, specifications and 
conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted.  You are 
authorized to do the work as specified.  Payment will be made as 
outlined above.  
DB 
Date of Acceptance: ______________________________________ 

 
 
 
Authorized 
Signature _______________________________________________ 
             TRAVIS HUFFORD 
 
 Note:  This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted 
 within 15 days. 
 
 
Signature _______________________________________________ 
 
 
Signature _______________________________________________ 

 
         
 



 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE 2024-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1244 OF THE CITY OF NEW 
CARLISLE’S PLANNING AND ZONING CODE 

 
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 1244 of the Codified Ordinances of the City of New Carlisle addresses the 
administration, enforcement and penalties of the City’s Zoning Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, an amendment to Section 1244.01 is necessary to provide the City Zoning Inspector 
with additional enforcement options for remedying violations of the Zoning Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, it has also been determined that Section 1244.04, which pertains to appeals 
concerning the interpretation or administration of the Zoning Code, and Section 1244.99, which 
states the penalties for violations of the Zoning Code, should be amended to further improve the 
City’s ability to enforce its Zoning Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the New Carlisle Planning Board, at its January 23, 2024 regular meeting, voted in 
favor of making a recommendation to Council that the requested amendments to Chapter 1244 be 
granted, and the recommendation was received by Council on February 20, 2024; and 
 
WHEREAS, the procedure to amend the Zoning Code, as set forth in Chapter 1242 of the Codified 
Ordinances, has been followed; and 
 
WHEREAS, Council finds it to be in the best interests of the health, safety and welfare of the City 
and its inhabitants to adopt the Planning Board's recommendation and to amend the City’s Zoning 
Code. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY ORDAINS, that: 
 
Section 1.  Chapter 1244 shall be amended in accordance with the attached exhibits as follows: 

▪ 1244.01 – See Exhibit A 
▪ 1244.04 – See Exhibit B 
▪ 1244.99 – See Exhibit C  

 
Section 2.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances that are in conflict with this ordinance are  

hereby repealed. 
 
Section 3.  It is found that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the 

adoption of this Ordinance were conducted in an open meeting of this Council, and 
that all deliberations of this Council that resulted in this formal action were in 
meetings open to the public in compliance with all legal requirements, including 
Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1st

2nd:

Wright Y N
Bahun Y N
Lindsey Y N
Mayor Cook Y N
V. Mayor Eggleston Y N
Shamy Y N
Grimm Y N

Totals:

Pass Fail

 
 
 
 
 
 
Passed this ________ day of ___________________, 2024. 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
               Bill Cook, MAYOR 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
          Emily Berner, Clerk of Council 
 
        APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacob M. Jeffries, DIRECTOR OF LAW 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Intro: 03/18/24 
   Public Hearing: 04/01/24 
      Action: 04/15/24 
       Effective: 05/15/24 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

Exhibit A 
ORD 2024-15 

1244.01   ZONING INSPECTOR. 

   (a)   A Zoning Inspector designated by the City Manager shall administer and enforce this Zoning 
Code. The Inspector may be provided with the assistance of such other persons as the Manager may 
direct. The Inspector, before entering upon his or her duties, shall give bond as specified in Ohio 
R.C. 733.69 and 733.70. 

(b)     The Zoning Inspector may file any misdemeanor complaints and issue any misdemeanor 
citations necessary to enforce this Code. 

   (bc)   For the purposes of this Zoning Code, the Inspector shall: 

      (1)   Upon finding that any of the provisions of this Zoning Code are being violated, notify in 
writing the person responsible for such violation, ordering the action necessary to correct such 
violation; 

      (2)   Order the discontinuance of illegal uses of land, buildings or structures; 

      (3)   Order the removal of illegal buildings or structures or illegal additions or structural 
alterations; 

      (4)   Order the discontinuance of any illegal work being done; or and 

      (5)   Take any other action authorized by this Zoning Code to ensure compliance with or to 
prevent violations of this Zoning Code. This may include the issuance of and action on zoning 
permits and such similar administrative duties as are permissible under law, and filing or issuing 
misdemeanor complaints or citations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

Exhibit B 
ORD 2024-15 

1244.04   APPEALS. 

   Appeals to the Board of Appeals concerning the interpretation or administration of this Zoning 
Code may be taken by any person aggrieved or by any officer or bureau of Council affected by any 
decision of the Zoning Inspector, other than the decision to file or issue a misdemeanor complaint 
or citation. Such appeal shall be taken within twenty days after the decision by filing, with the 
Inspector and with the Board, a notice of appeal specifying the grounds upon which the appeal is 
being taken. The Inspector shall transmit to the Board all the papers constituting the record upon 
which the action appealed from was taken. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

Exhibit C 
ORD 2024-15 

1244.99   PENALTY. 
   (a)   Whoever violates or fails to comply with any of the provisions of this Zoning Code is shall 
be guilty of a minor misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof and shall be fined not less than one 
hundred dollars ($100.00) but not more than one hundred fifty dollars ($1500.00) for each offense. 
Any person convicted of a second offense of this section within two years of the first offense shall 
be guilty of a misdemeanor of the fourth degree and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined not 
less than one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) but not more than two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00), 
or imprisoned not more than 30 days, or both. Any person convicted of a third offense of this 
section within three years of the first offense shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree 
and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined not less than two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) but 
not more than one thousand dollars ($1,000.00), or imprisoned not more than 180 days, or both.  
A separate offense shall be deemed committed each day during or on which a violation or 
noncompliance occurs or continues. 

   (b)   The owner or tenant of any building, structure, premises or part thereof, or any architect, 
builder, contractor, agent or other person who commits, participates in, assists in or maintains such 
a violation or noncompliance, is guilty of a separate offense and shall suffer the penalty provided in 
subsection (a) hereof.  

   (c)   Nothing in this section shall prevent the Municipality from taking such other lawful action 
as is necessary to prevent or remedy such a violation or noncompliance. 

   (d)  Any violation of any section of this Zoning Code is a strict liability offense.   
 



1st

2nd:

Wright Y N
Bahun Y N
Lindsey Y N
Mayor Cook Y N
V. Mayor Eggleston Y N
Shamy Y N
Grimm Y N

Totals:

Pass Fail

ORDINANCE 2024-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE INCOME 
TAX RULES AND REGULATIONS REGARDING THE LOCAL BOARD OF 

TAX REVIEW 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of New Carlisle periodically reviews the laws relating to municipal 
income tax; and  
 
 WHEREAS, House Bill 5, which went into effect January 1, 2016 for tax years 2016 and 
beyond, made substantial changes to Chapter 718 of the Ohio Revised Code which pertains to municipal 
income tax; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in response to House Bill 5, the City amended its Income Tax Rules and 
Regulations on December 7, 2015 by adopting Resolution 15-09R; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Tax Administrator recently ascertained that Article XV of the City’s 
Income Tax Rules and Regulations, which created a Local Board of Tax Review, contains several 
formatting errors and does not fully incorporate the necessary language from O.R.C. § 718.11; and  
 
 WHEREAS, it has been determined that Article XV of the City’s Income Tax Rules and 
Regulations should be amended to correct the formatting errors and to add the missing language from 
O.R.C. § 718.11. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY ORDAINS  that: 

 
 SECTION 1. Article XV of the City of New Carlisle Income Tax Rules and Regulations  

is amended as set forth in the attached Exhibit A. 
 

 
 Passed this ________ day of _____________, 2024. 

 
 

     ___________________________ 
                Bill Cook, MAYOR 

 
     ___________________________ 
              Emily Berner, CLERK 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
  
Jake Jeffries, Director of Law 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Intro: 04/01/2024 
  Action: 04/15/2024 
    Effective: 04/30/2024 

  



EXHIBIT A 
 

ARTICLE XV 
LOCAL BOARD OF TAX REVIEW 

 
 
A. (1) The legislative authority of each municipal corporation that imposes a tax on income in 
accordance with  In accordance with ORC § 718.11, shall maintain there is hereby established a 
local board of tax review to hear appeals as provided in this section Article XV. 
 
 (2) The local board of tax review shall consist of three members.  Two members shall be 

appointed by the legislative authority of the municipal corporation, but such appointees may not 
be employees, elected officials, or contractors with the municipal corporation at any time during 
their term or in the five (5) years immediately preceding the date of appointment.  One member 
shall be appointed by the top administrative official of the municipal corporation.  This member 
may be an employee of the municipal corporation, but may not be the director of finance or 
equivalent officer, or the tax administrator or other similar official, or an employee directly involved 
in the municipal tax matters, or any direct subordinate thereof. 

 
(3) The term for members of the local board of tax review appointed by the legislative authority 
shall be two (2) years.  There is no limit on the number of terms that a member may serve if the 
member is reappointed by the legislative authority.  The board member appointed by the top 
administrative official shall serve at the discretion of the administrative official. 
 
(4) Members of the board of tax review appointed by the legislative authority may be removed 
by the legislative authority by majority vote for malfeasance, misfeasance, or nonfeasance in 
office.  To remove such a member, the legislative authority must give the member a copy of the 
charges against the member and afford the member an opportunity to be publicly heard in person 
or by counsel in the member’s own defense upon not less than ten (10) days’ notice.  The 
decision by the legislative authority on the charges is final and not appealable. 

 
(5) A member of the board who, for any reason, ceases to meet the qualifications for the position 
prescribed by this section shall resign immediately by operation of law. 

 
(6) A vacancy in an unexpired term shall be filled in the same manner as the original appointment 
within sixty (60) days of when the vacancy was created.  Any member appointed to fill a vacancy 
occurring prior to the expiration of the term for which the member’s predecessor was appointed 
shall hold office for the remainder of the term.  No vacancy on the board shall impair the power 
and authority of the remaining members to exercise all the powers of the board. 

 
(7) If a member is temporarily unable to serve on the board due to a conflict of interest, illness, 
absence, or similar reason, the legislative authority or top administrative official that appointed 
the member shall appoint another individual to temporarily serve on the board in the member’s 
place.  The appointment of such an individual shall be subject to the same requirements and 
limitations as are applicable to the appointment of the member temporarily unable to serve. 
   

B. Whenever a tax administrator issues an assessment regarding an underpayment of municipal 
income tax or denies a refund claim, the tax administrator shall notify the taxpayer in writing at the 
same time of the taxpayer's right to appeal the assessment or denial, the manner in which the 
taxpayer may appeal the assessment or denial, and the address to which the appeal should be 
directed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
C.   Review process: 
 
C. Any person who has been issued an assessment may appeal the assessment to the Local Board 
of Tax Review board created pursuant to this section Article XV by filing a request with the board.  
The request shall be in writing, shall specify the reason or reasons why the assessment should be 
deemed incorrect or unlawful, and shall be filed within sixty (60) days after the taxpayer receives the 
assessment.  
 
D. The Board local board of tax review shall schedule a hearing to be held within sixty (60) days after 
receiving an appeal of an assessment under paragraph C of this Article XV, unless the taxpayer 
requests additional time to prepare or waives a hearing.  If the taxpayer does not waive the hearing, 
the taxpayer may appear before the board and may be represented by an attorney at law, certified 
public accountant, or other representative. The board may allow a hearing to be continued as jointly 
agreed to by the parties.  In such a case, the hearing must be completed within one hundred twenty 
(120) days after the first day of the hearing unless the parties agree otherwise.  
 
E. The board Local Board of Tax Review may affirm, reverse, or modify the tax administrator's 
assessment or any part of that assessment.  The board shall issue a final determination on the 
appeal within ninety (90) days after the board's final hearing on the appeal, and send a copy of its 
final determination by ordinary mail to all of the parties to the appeal within fifteen (15) days after 
issuing the final determination.  The taxpayer or the tax administrator may appeal the board's final 
determination as provided in ORC § 5717.011. 
 
F. The local board of tax review created pursuant to this section Article XV shall adopt rules governing 
its procedures and shall keep a record of its transactions.  Such records are not public records 
available for inspection under Ohio Revised Code Chapter ORC § 149.43.  Hearings requested by 
a taxpayer before the Board a local board of tax review created pursuant to this section Article XV 
are not meetings of a public body subject to ORC § 121.22.  

 



1st

2nd:

Wright Y N
Bahun Y N
Lindsey Y N
Mayor Cook Y N
V. Mayor Eggleston Y N
Shamy Y N
Grimm Y N

Totals:

Pass Fail

ORDINANCE 2024-17 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 2014-04 FOR THE PURPOSE 
OF CORRECTING A SCRIVENER'S ERROR REGARDING THE PERMIT FEE 

FOR FINAL PLAT ESTIMATED PROJECT COST 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Ordinance 2014-04 established permit fees for various projects within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it has come to the City Manager’s attention that a scrivener’s error contained in 
Ordinance 2014-04 has caused the permit fee for Final Plat Estimated Project Cost to be incorrect; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the incorrect permit fee is unreasonable, unrealistic and is due to an erroneously 
formatted number; and  
 
 WHEREAS, immediate action by City Council is needed to amend Ordinance 2014-04 and the 
fee schedule, as indicated below, so that economic development will not be negatively impacted by the 
incorrectly listed permit fee.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY ORDAINS, that:  
 
SECTION 1:  Ordinance 2014-04 and the permit fee for Final Plat Estimated Project Cost be amended as 

follows: 
 

Major Subdivisions (5 or more lots) 1. $200 Preliminary Plans                                                             
2. $150 Plus $2 Per Lot for Final Plans                                      
3. $1000 Engineering Fees                                                            
4. 2.5% 0.025% of Estimated Project Cost 

   
 

 
Passed this __________day of _____________, 2024. 
 

      
      ______________________________ 
                    Bill Cook, MAYOR 
 
 
                                                                                  ______________________________ 
      Emily Berner, CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 
        APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________________ 
Jacob M. Jeffries, DIRECTOR OF LAW  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Intro: 04/01/2024 
  Action: 04/15/2024 
    Effective: 04/30/2024 
 


	Planning Department Report_Mar 2 Mar 15 2024 Final.pdf
	Planning Department Report_Mar 16 Mar 29 2024 Stats
	Planning Department Report_Mar 16 Mar 29 2024

	All Legislation.pdf
	ORD 2024-14 Heritage Hall and Hensley Park Paving Project REVISED.pdf
	Passed this ________ day of _____________, 2024.
	___________________________
	Emily Berner, CLERK
	APPROVED AS TO FORM:

	37478A9FAB20CC0CEC77904499B9ABD7
	Passed this ________ day of _____________, 2024.

	4D2B4142F13DEEED5652B3E5BD78D7BA
	Passed this ________ day of _____________, 2024.
	___________________________
	Emily Berner, CLERK





